

# ASHBY CUM FENBY PARISH COUNCIL

## MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY 6<sup>TH</sup> NOVEMBER 2017 AT 7.00PM IN THE CHURCH HALL, ASHBY CUM FENBY

Present: Cllr John Shaw Cllr Jane Thomson  
Cllr Stan Wood Cllr Brian Purchon

Apologies: Cllr Nick Pettigrew Cllr Philip Jackson NELC  
Cllr Iain Colquhoun NELC

In Attendance: Kim Kirkham Parish Clerk

### 17/092 Declaration of Interest (Model Code of Conduct Order 2012)

- (a) To record declaration of interest by any member of the Parish Council in respect of the agenda items listed below. Members declaring interest should identify the agenda item and type of interest being declared – No interest was declared on any item listed on the agenda.
- (b) To note dispensation's given to any member of the council in respect of the Agenda Items listed below – None applied for.

### 17/093 Questions Raised by Members of the Public (15 minutes) on Agenda Items (under suspension of Standing Orders)

- A resident has raised concerns regarding the speed of the traffic along Brigsley Road (B1203). NELC are currently looking at reducing the speed limit in this area.
- A resident reported that she has contacted the police regarding 'lamping' near her property.

### 17/094 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 2<sup>nd</sup> October 2017

The minutes of the meeting held on 2<sup>nd</sup> October 2017 were approved and signed by the Chair as a true record. **Action: Clerk to prepare draft minutes by 10<sup>th</sup> November & to be posted 17<sup>th</sup> November 2017.**

### 17/095 Police Report

The Police were unable to attend the meeting, but a Police Report was submitted. The clerk distributed copies of the report to Councillors prior to the meeting. There have been 13 crimes reported in the Waltham Ward. One incident reported for Ashby; a bonnet and front bumper were stolen from a car parked on the forecourt of the garage at Brigsley Road. **Action: Clerk to post Police Report on the Parish Notice Board.**

### 17/096 Community Led Plan (CLP)

The Chair read the update received from Holly Hall (Highway Asset Engineer), regarding the specific highway concerns that were raised by the Parish Council. Councillors discussed the proposed speed limits from Ashby Hill to Brigsley. They suggested the possibility, that once the new speed limits are in place that relevant signage is sited to warn drivers. **Action: Clerk to give feedback to NELC.**

### 17/097 Highways / Public Footpaths / Items Carried Forward

- Footpath 89 width between Whitsend/The Thorns – Mathew Chaplin (NELC) e-mail was read out, informing the Parish Council that he needs to contact legal services. **Action: Clerk to continue to contact NELC for updates.**
- 09/104 Misuse of Land Whitsend – Councillors discussed the response from Sharon Wroot (NELC Director of Finance, Operations and Resources). The Clerk advised that Cllr Jackson

has discussed the situation with Sharon Wroot and will keep the Parish Council informed.

**Action: Councillors agreed they would like an update for December's meeting. Clerk to contact Cllr Jackson.**

- 17/073-1 Vacancy on the Parish Council – Councillors discussed the casual vacancy on the Parish Council. **Action: Cllr Shaw agreed to contact a suggested candidate.**
- 17/081 Footpath along the B1203 – The landowner has cut back the overhanging branches. However, he wanted it noted that he rents the field and feels the landowner should be responsible. Clerk advised that she has asked NELC to clear the leaves along the footpath. *Item to be deleted.*
- 17/086-1 Overgrown footpath off Chapel Lane – Clerk confirmed that she has informed Cllr Shepherd that the landowner is responsible for this footpath. NELC have asked the landowner to cutback the vegetation. **Action: Councillors agreed to leave this item on the agenda to give the landowner time to complete the relevant work.**
- 17/086-2 NELC Local Plan Modifications Consultation – Clerk said that she has completed the consultation on NELC website. *Item to be deleted.*
- 17/089-1 The Stables, Ashby Hill – Martin Ambler (Senior Enforcement Officer) has confirmed that the investigation remains ongoing. **Action: Clerk to contact NELC.**
- 17/089-4 Newsletter – Councillors discussed the contents of the draft Newsletter, amendments were agreed. **Action: Clerk to complete amendments. Newsletter to be distributed to Councillors at December's meeting.**

#### 17/098 Items for Discussion

1. ERNLLCA Membership Survey – The Parish Council completed the survey. **Resolved: Clerk to forward the completed form to ERNLLCA.**
2. Portable Speed Sign – Clerk advised that Humberside Police do not support portable speed signs. NELC speed officer has asked for any areas of concerns. **Action: Councillors agreed not to pursue the purchase of portable speed signs.**

**The following documents were placed in the distribution pack:**

#### 17/099 Information Update

1. ERNLLCA Newsletter – October 2017.
2. Funding Fair – 22<sup>nd</sup> November 2017.
3. Came & Co Insurance – Autumn Newsletter.
4. NELC Enforcement Update.
5. Clerks & Councils Direct – November 2017 issue

#### 17/100 Planning Matters

##### **Application Received:**

- a) DM/0972/17/FUL – Thornlea, Main Road. Erect two storey detached double garage. Councillors reviewed the plans and **no objections** were raised.

##### **Pending Consideration:**

- a) DM/0414/17REM – Land at Chapel Lane. Reserved matters application for appearance and landscaping following DM/0153/15/OUT (Outline application with access, layout and scale to be considered for the erection of one dwelling, garaging and access drive) to erect one dwelling, garaging and access drive.

**Approved:**

- b) DM/0824/17/FUL – Land north of Equestrian Centre, Barton Street. Variation of Condition 7 (Approved Plans) following DM/0443/15/FUL (erection of country estate’s manager’s house) for revision to allow addition of carport.
- c) DM/0713/17/FUL – Land off Barton Street adjacent to The Avenue, East Ravendale. Importation of inert topsoil in order to raise land level in an agricultural field.
- d) DM/0375/17/FUL – Kingsley, Brigsley Road. Change of use from domestic garden to camping site for three mobile camping pods.

17/101 Clerk’s Report - To receive and report any correspondence from Councillors or Members of the Public for consideration at the meeting

1. Town & Parish Council Liaison Committee – Martin Ambler will be attending the next meeting on Thursday 23<sup>rd</sup> November to answer any queries in relation to general planning enforcement matters.
2. Mayor’s Ball – Saturday 25<sup>th</sup> November at 7pm for 7.30pm in the Town Hall, Grimsby. The price of tickets will be £35 per person, which includes a three-course dinner and special entertainment for the night.
3. Friday 3<sup>rd</sup> November, the road sweeper came through the village to clear the fallen leaves.

17/102 Future Dates

- Date of Next Meeting –**Monday 4<sup>th</sup> December 2017 at 7pm.**
- Planning Committee Meeting – Wednesday 8<sup>th</sup> November 2017 at 9.30am in Grimsby Town Hall.
- ERNLLCA Annual Conference – Friday 17<sup>th</sup> November 2017 at The Village Hotel, Hull.
- Town & Liaison Parish Council Liaison Committee – Thursday 23<sup>rd</sup> November at 7pm in Grimsby Town Hall.

17/103 Finance

To receive a list of Accounts payable up to 6<sup>th</sup> November 2017 and approve their payment: -

- Kim Kirkham – Salary £132.60
- Southern Electric – Telephone Box electric supply £6.70
- Hatcliffe Garden Services – Grass cutting services £190.00
  
- Deposit – 2<sup>nd</sup> Half Year Precept £1570.57

**RESOLVED: Accounts approved for payment.**

The meeting closed at 20.10

Prepared by: Kim Kirkham, Parish Clerk

Approved by: \_\_\_\_\_



# Local Community News

Protecting Communities, Targeting Criminals, Making a Difference

## Waltham, Brigsley & Ashby-cum-Fenby Update October 2017

### Crime

There have been 13 crimes reported in the Waltham Ward during October.

About 1.30am on 4<sup>th</sup> October, entry was made into a property on Main Road, Brigsley. Car keys were stolen. Tools were then stolen from a shed after the door was forced. A door was forced on a vehicle parked securely outside the property. Tools were stolen.

Overnight 26<sup>th</sup> & 27<sup>th</sup> October, a double glazed window was smashed to make entry into a property on Cheapside. Nothing was stolen.

Overnight 11<sup>th</sup> & 12<sup>th</sup> October, a bonnet and front bumper were stolen from a car parked on the forecourt of the garage at Brigsley Road, Ashby-cum-Fenby.

There have been seven reports of Criminal Damage.

A property at Cheapside had damage caused to its front door possibly by an air gun pellet.

The climbing frame on Mount Pleasant has been damaged.

Swings and slide were damaged after expanding foam was sprayed on them at Neville Turner Way.

A bay window at a property on High Street was damaged by a rock being thrown through the windows.

A window at a home on Fairway was damaged.

A car parked at Ronald Farmer Court was 'keyed' along its offside.

Damage was caused in a home following a drunken argument.

Other crime include an assault and inappropriate messages over social media.

There have been seven reports of ASB. Youths causing annoyance at High Street, Ings Lane, Fairway, Kirkgate. A car sounding its horn at Brian Avenue, and two neighbour disputes.

### How you can help

Your local Neighbourhood Policing Team appreciates the importance of being in the right place, at the right time, for the right reasons to reassure the public, improve public confidence and reduce crime and anti-social behaviour in the area which we all live and work.

We encourage all residents to call and report any issues where they live so that we can deal with any issues and also step up our patrols in the area. The number to call for non-emergency issues is 101.

If you feel there are issues in your community that your local Police should be prioritising, please inform your local officers or the local Parish Council.

The named officers for Waltham Ward are:

PC 373 Matt Stephenson [matthew.stephenson@humberside.pnn.police.uk](mailto:matthew.stephenson@humberside.pnn.police.uk)

PCSO 7602 Lesley Parry [lesley.parry@humberside.pnn.police.uk](mailto:lesley.parry@humberside.pnn.police.uk)